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These answers are based on the Energy Commission’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The Energy Commission cannot at this time give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding, because all proposal details are not known.
Can our patents be used as matching funds?
No. Match funds are typically tangible project items specific to the proposed project. Patents cannot be used as match funds. Please see pages 11-13 of the application manual for more details.
Just to make sure on a project of $1,000,000 you request us to provide 20% on group 2, 3 and 4?	
Yes. For Groups 2, 3 and 4, the match funding requirement is 20% of the requested EPIC funds. Please see the funding table on pages 10-11.
My team would like to know if a line item named "California Energy Surcharge" or "Public Benefits Charge" on an electric bill are considered a payment into EPIC funds?
[bookmark: _GoBack]No, "California Energy Surcharge" or "Public Benefits Charge" on an electric bill are not considered payment into EPIC funds.
Are applicants allowed to propose a 48-month project term? If so can the term end date be later than December 31, 2023?
No, the end date cannot be later than December 31, 2023.
When proposing a project term in Application Attachment 1, must the start date be July 20, 2020, which is listed as the anticipated Agreement Start Date in the Solicitation Manual at p. 14, or can the agreement start date be a different date?
The agreement start date may be different from July 20, 2020, but the date must be after it has been approved at a CEC business meeting. That date is the earliest expected start date based on the grant being approved at the June 2020 Business Meeting.
Does Scoring Criteria 1 -- Project Team Past Performance with Energy Commission -- give 15 points to applicants who have never had a prior CEC grant, or does it only award points to applicants who have previously had a CEC grant?
An applicant who has never had a prior CEC contract, grant or loan will be given 15 points for Scoring Criterion 1.
The maximum project funding is $10 million, but is there a single applicant cap if the same entity wanted to apply for multiple projects?
No; the funding caps are per project, not per applicant. However, an applicant cannot apply for multiple groups in one proposal. If the applicant has submitted more than one application for the same project group, each application must be for a distinct project. Each proposal for any group must be separate and not refer to the other groups in their proposal. Please see the top of page 18 under Section II.B.2. 
It is my understanding that this solicitation GFO-19-306 does not include customers being supplied electricity by the Imperial Irrigation District.  We are working with an Indian Tribe that may be interested but they are served by the IID.  
1)	Can you confirm this is the case?
2)	I was told that there is an exception in GFO-19-306 that if the end user pays into the EPIC fund, that this would allow them to take part in this solicitation. Can you confirm this is the case even if they are in IID territory?
A.8	The source of funding for the solicitation is from the EPIC program. EPIC funding is generated through a fee that ratepayers in the IOU territories of PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E are required to pay. It has been a traditional requirement from the start of the EPIC that Technology Demonstration and Deployment projects have to be within an IOU territory or with an entity that has a power purchase agreement (PPA) with a California electric IOU. 
Q.9	I have a design using hydrogen from biomass which would meet the solicitation requirements. Does it require that I be connected to the grid?
A.9	Yes, you must be connected to the electricity grid. The solicitation is for customer side-of-the-meter end-users who are connected to the grid and served by an investor-owned utility. Behind-the-meter demonstrations, as specified in Section I.A., are connected to the grid.
Q.10 Can I produce hydrogen from biomass from the BioMAT Program compress and deliver it to EV supercharger stations - Grid-Less Electricity? I would have more than 400KW for 10 hours available at supercharger stations to charge lithium-ion batteries.
A.10 No, the solicitation is for customer side-of-the-meter end-users who are connected to the grid and served by an investor-owned utility.
Q.11 The solicitation documents mandate that applicants accept CEC’s standard terms and conditions without exception as part of their application.  Our questions are as follows:
•	Are there exceptions to that rule?
•	Specifically, we would ask for exceptions to: 
o	Lack of specific limits on liability or consequential damages.  Our corporate rules prevent us from signing contracts with unlimited liability. 
o	Royalty provisions: We are bringing a new flow battery technology to market.  Lockheed Martin has invested considerable funds in the development of the technology and owns the appropriate IP around it.  We understand that the CEC terms would not require royalty payments on this prior IP.  But we are concerned about potential liability for IP created during the course of the project and would seek protections in the contract from creation of such liabilities.  The current CEC terms do not provide for that.
A.11	Each applicant must agree to accept the terms and conditions that correspond to its organization, without negotiation. The CEC reserves the right to modify the terms and conditions prior to execution. See page 16, section II.A.2. in the solicitation manual. The selected awardee(s) may identify certain intellectual property in an attachment to a resultant grant agreement, Attachment C-1, “Confidential Products and Project-Relevant Pre-Existing and Independently Funded Intellectual Property.”
Q.12 My main question is that does California Energy Commission provide a list of sites that may be interested in the long duration energy storage project (GFO-19-306) for Group 2 and Group 3? Will you help us to find out the demonstration sites?
A.12 The California Energy Commission does not provide a list of potential project sites. You are encouraged to visit the Empower Innovation website at https://www.empowerinnovation.net/ to participate with other potential project partners in professional collaborations.
Q.13 Could you tell us where to find the list of companies we can contact to partner regarding the above solicitation?
A.13 The California Energy Commission does not provide a list of potential project partners. You are encouraged to visit the Empower Innovation website at https://www.empowerinnovation.net/ to participate with other potential project partners in professional collaborations.
Q.14 Was the pre-application workshop recorded and available for viewing?
A.14 Yes; the recording is available at: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-01/gfo-19-306-demonstrating-long-duration-and-title-24-compatible-energy-storage. There is a link for the “Pre-Application Workshop Recording – YouTube” in the “Additional Information” section.
Q.15 The question is whether a selected site can receive service from a CCA if it is located within an IOU territory.
A.15 Yes. If a site receives service from a CCA, and the CCA is within an IOU territory and is partnered with an IOU for transmission and distribution services, that is allowable for this solicitation. CCAs that are within IOU territory pay into the EPIC fund, and are thus allowable.
Q.16 Is thermal energy storage an eligible technology under the GFO for groups 1-3? Thermal energy storage was mentioned in the beginning of the webinar as an example eligible technology but at the end of the webinar it was stated that eligible storage technologies may be limited to those that are “electricity in, electricity out.” Thermal energy storage is “electricity in” but is only indirectly “electricity out” through the reduction of thermal electricity loads. Since thermal energy storage meets the definition of an energy storage system under AB 2514, I am assuming it is eligible but want to confirm. If thermal energy storage is an eligible technology in some circumstances but not others, please define what would make thermal energy storage eligible or not.
A.16 For a thermal storage project to be acceptable for this solicitation, the proposer must explain how the system meets the definition of an energy storage system.
Q.17 If a proposal under group 1, 2, or 3 included multiple energy storage systems that were different technologies, does the minimum rating and duration requirements (50 kW for 10 hours or 400 kW for 10 hours) have to be met for each separate system and/or technology in the proposal or can the combined rating and duration for all of the systems/technologies be used to meet the minimum rating and duration requirements? For example, if a Group 1 proposal included a 200 kW 10-hour flow battery and 200 kW 10-hour flywheel energy storage system would that meet the minimum requirements for Group 1 OR would the flow battery and flywheel each need be rated for 400 kW for 10 hours (for a total of 800 kW for 10 hours) in order to meet the minimum Group 1 ratings requirements?
A.17 No, for Group 1 the proposed system must meet the minimum rating of 400KWs with a duration of at least 10 hours. Please see Section II.B.2.a. This cannot be a combination of smaller systems to meet the rating or duration.
Q.18 I am seeking clarification regarding the Match Funds scoring criteria under 10b – Exceeds Minimum Match Scoring Table. The amounts that will achieve each threshold are unclear because the “up to 100 percent” is not defined and a formula was not provided. Is it up to 100% of the CEC grant amount? To ensure clarity, it would be helpful to have the CEC define the thresholds for the following scenarios:
Scenario 1: Group 1 proposal for $5M in CEC grant funding
Minimum Match: $2.5M
Exceeds Minimum Match by 10%: ??? (what is the total match required to reach this threshold?)
Exceeds Minimum Match by 20%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 40%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 60%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 80%: ???
Scenario 2: Group 2 proposal for $500k in CEC grant funding
Minimum Match: $100k
Exceeds Minimum Match by 10%: ??? (what is the total match required to reach this threshold?)
Exceeds Minimum Match by 20%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 40%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 60%: ???
Exceeds Minimum Match by 80%: ???
NOTE: I understand that the match needs to be above, not equal to, 10% for the first additional point but to understand the formula it will easier to use round numbers.
A.18	The scoring table on match funds (scoring criterion 10) will be amended to the following:

a. Cash match share is preferred; however, in-kind cost share is permitted and will be considered for solicitation match requirements. Points for this criterion will be evaluated based on the proposed cash match relative to the total match (cash + in-kind) contributions using the Cash Match Scoring Table:
Cash Match Scoring Table
	Percentage of Proposed Cash Match Funds
	Score

	80 to 100%
	5

	60 to <80%
	4

	40 to <60%
	3

	20 to <40%
	2

	10 to <20%
	1


b. Additional points will be awarded to applications that exceed the minimum match requirements based on the percentage amount above minimum using the Exceeds Minimum Match Scoring Table:
Exceeds Minimum 
Match Scoring Table
	Percentage above Minimum Match (cash and in-kind)
	Score

	80%
	5

	60 to <80%
	4

	40 to <60%
	3

	20 to <40%
	2

	10 to <20%
	1




Q.19 For Groups 1-3 the GFO states that up to 30% of EPIC funds can be used for PV. What limitations are there, if any, for using eligible match funds for PV to meet the minimum match requirement and to receive “Exceeds Minimum Match” scoring criteria points? Can only 30% of match funds be used for PV or is there no cap, so long as the PV is purchased and installed during the term of the grant? For example, if $1M is requested in EPIC funds for storage can $500k, $1M, or more in solar PV purchased and installed during the terms of the grant be proposed and eligible as match to meet the minimum match requirement and/or receive “Exceeds Minimum Match” criteria points?
A.19 There is no limit on the amount of match funding spent on PV; however, any match amount over 100% will not receive extra scoring points.
Q.20 For Categories 2-3, the IOU requirement seems excessive. We are considering a project that is located in 90-95% disadvantaged community and level 2 for fire. Excluding multiple communities based on LADWP POU status seems to drive even a further wedge. Would you reconsider? Or just point reduction.
A.20 California Public Utilities Commission Decision 11-12-035 established the EPIC program for the benefit of electricity ratepayers of Pacific Gas and Electric, San Diego Gas and Electric, and Southern California Edison. EPIC is funded by ratepayers in IOU electric service territories. Because of this, projects funded with EPIC grants must benefit the ratepayers who pay into this fund. The use of EPIC funds requires the demonstration be in an IOU territory.
Q.21 Will CEC be including the EPIC Standard Grant Terms and Conditions in the Solicitation?  If not, is there a separate form for applicants to complete to identify its pre-existing and independently funded intellectual property?
A.21 The EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions can be found at:
https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/funding-resources
The selected awardee(s) may complete an attachment to a resultant grant agreement, Attachment C-1, “Confidential Products and Project-Relevant Pre-Existing and Independently Funded Intellectual Property,” if appropriate.
Q.22 If our proposal is valid thru June 2020, will this date cover any decision delays that may arise?  (Ref: Solicitation Article I.D. (p.5) and Article II.A.3. (p.16))?  If not, what date will suffice?
A.22 The proposal must meet the CEQA requirements and the Secretary of State requirements as defined in the GFO manual. The intent of this GFO is to complete all the grant preparation document work and present the grant for approval during the June 2020 Energy Commission Business Meeting. All proposals should be accurate through that date.
Q.23 Are shipping (including tariff) charges related to demonstrated and/or purchased equipment reimbursable under the grant?
A.23 Charges that are associated with the implementation of this grant are normally considered acceptable as reimbursable charges for the grant if they are in direct support of the grant activities.
Q.24 Must this application be compliant with the Buy America Act?  If so, how do you recommend an applicant proceed when key components are only available abroad?
A.24 The Standard EPIC Terms and Conditions require compliance with any federal, state, or local laws or regulations applicable to the project that are not expressly listed in the Agreement. If a federal law applies to the project, the recipient needs to comply with it.
Q.25 Per the opportunity in Group 1: In the case of cost sharing by the military, is it adequate to demonstrate that the cost share has been budgeted? This is a scenario where the military budgets for the electrical infrastructure, including solar, and the energy storage system is delivered to plug-in. The timing to approve on the military budget is a problem because the decision is made centrally in Washington, D.C. and not made locally or regionally. The budgeting cycle doesn’t align with CEC solicitation due February 28.
A.25 For government-provided match share (military and other government entities), given these entities work on a fiscal year basis and cannot certify they will receive funds in a future fiscal year, a letter is required from the entity stating that the proposed funds are budgeted and expected to be approved once the specific fiscal year budget is finalized. If one of the match providers drops out or is no longer able to meet their match funding commitment, the recipient is required to replace that match source in a reasonable time with another valid source of match funding. Failure to meet match commitment is grounds to have the grant terminated, and for the CEC to pursue other remedies.
Q.26 Does electrical and thermal efficiency count in the total efficiency of the system referred to in the Application Manual on page 42, 2b and Attachment 4 Project Narrative Form, page 1 under Technical Merit b?
A.26 Normally, electrical efficiency is measured as round-trip efficiency on an input compared to output basis. However, for thermal systems that meet the requirements of the GFO, the proposal can count other efficiency improvements (such as thermal efficiencies) if they are relevant.
Q.27 a. Are expenses associated with using the thermal energy for heating and cooling allowed for CEC reimbursement? b. Are they part of the 30% mentioned on page 24 of the Application Manual? c. Can they be counted as match?
A.27 a. Yes, if the thermal energy system meets the definition of an energy storage system in the GFO. Please refer to the EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions, including sections 8.c, Reimbursable Cost Requirements and 8.j, Allowability of Costs; and Exhibit B, Budget, instructions, for further detail on costs which may be reimbursed by the CEC. b. The 30% of EPIC funds referenced on Page 24 addresses that the proposal can spend up to 30% of the requested EPIC funds for the PV, wind system or other renewable sources of electricity that feed/charge the energy storage system. c. Match funds are typically tangible project items specific to the proposed project; please see application manual section I.F.2, “Match Funding Requirement,” for definitions of allowable match, as well as the EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions.
Q.28 a. Are expenses associated with smart charging to take advantage of TOU and to avoid demand charges allowed for CEC reimbursement? b. Are they part of the 30% mentioned on page 24 of the Application Manual? c. Can they be counted as match?
A.28 a. Yes, if the smart charging system is part of the energy storage system as defined in the GFO. Please refer to the EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions, including sections 8.c, Reimbursable Cost Requirements and 8.j, Allowability of Costs; and Exhibit B, Budget, instructions, for further detail on costs which may be reimbursed by the CEC. b. The 30% of EPIC funds referenced on Page 24 addresses that the proposal can spend up to 30% of the requested EPIC funds for the PV, wind system or other renewable sources of electricity that feed/charge the energy storage system. c. Match funds are typically tangible project items specific to the proposed project; please see application manual section I.F.2, “Match Funding Requirement,” for definitions of allowable match, as well as the EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions.
Q.29 Are Low Carbon Fuel Standards (LCFS) and Renewable Identification Numbers (RIN) credits and Renewable Energy Certificates/Credits (REC) generated by the project counted as match?  Are they cash match? Can match funding be from charging EVs under the low carbon fuel standard? In other words, are LCFS credits considered cash match?
A.29 No. Please see application manual section I.F.2, “Match Funding Requirement,” for definitions of allowable match, as well as the EPIC Standard Terms and Conditions. The funds can only be credited as match if the cash funds are received during the term of the grant agreement. There must be a reasonable probability that the project will qualify and receive these funds for them to be counted as match so the proposal must define how these funds apply and when they will be received.
Q.30 Would the CEC approve/move forward with an application without disadvantage(s) an energy storage technology at TRL 6 with sharable public performance data submitted towards the end of 2020?
A.30 Yes, that is allowable as long as the proposed project meets the other requirements of the GFO.
Q.31 What are the timeline requirements for submitting field performance data of our technology?
A.31 We ask to see 6-12 months of validation and test results from the field demonstration, and these results will be included in the final report for the project. These deliverables need to be completed within the agreement term.
Q.32 Regarding: Scoring Criteria, Application Manual p. 52: Wildfire Criteria: “For all groups, applications will receive an additional 5 points if the demonstration project is located in a Tier 2 or 3 High Fire-Threat District as defined by the CPUC at https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/firethreatmaps/. “
Question: Will a project receive the same five (5) total points of extra credit if the site is located in a Tier 3 vs a Tier 2 High Fire-Threat District? Is there any scoring advantage between Tier 3 and Tier 2, or will both receive the same treatment, scoring and evaluation for this grant? In other words, with all else being equal, will the commission value projects located in Tier 3 over Tier 2 High Fire-Threat Districts?
A.32	Tier 2 and Tier 3 High Fire-Threat Districts will be treated equivalently for the bonus points.
Q.33 Regarding: Screening Criteria, Application Manual p. 42: #5: “If the applicant has submitted more than one application for the same project group, each application is for a distinct project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work).”
Question: Is the Commission able to give more details and guidance on what would qualify as a “distinct” project, should an applicant be interested in submitting more than one project in a single group? Should any overlap in the Scope of Work between projects, including community outreach, value/benefit metric development, workforce components or any other “non-technical” task that are similar between otherwise different projects, result in non-compliance?
A.33	A principal grant applicant may only submit one proposal for each of the four groups as long as each proposal submitted meets all the specific requirements defined for the group. There is no limit on the number of proposals that an entity can participate in as a subcontractor or match funding partner. Please see the top of page 18 under Section II.B.2.
Q.34 Q.35	Additional Related Question: Is there a situation where a project team may be eligible for more than one project in a particular group, given the projects are located at different sites and using a different technology? Additional Context: In the event a project team had two separate site locations, using two separate battery technologies and separate complementary or leveraged project components, such as a microgrid or renewable generation, we are wondering if and how the same team structure would be eligible for both projects in the same group. It is possible that there would be overlap in certain scopes of work, specifically outreach and community engagement, which may disqualify the application based on our reading of the Application Manual. However, similar outreach or engagement approaches between projects do not strike us as an issue in finding “distinct” projects, as there are similar overall best practices for community engagement that may be (and often should be) similar across all projects, communities and groups 1-4 in this grant. Our project team is asking due to the likelihood that more than one compelling and viable project will be possible in a particular group under this solicitation, and would like to know if this approach is possible or not, or if we simply need to pick only one project per group, full stop.
A.34 No, a principal grant applicant may only submit one proposal for each of the four groups as long as each proposal submitted meets all the specific requirements defined for the group. There is no limit on the number of proposals that an entity can participate in as a subcontractor or match funding partner. Please see the top of page 18 under Section II.B.2.
Q.35 Please confirm that the energy storage solutions in Group 1 don’t need to comply with Title-24.
A.35 Title-24 is not applicable to projects submitted under Group 1.
Q.36 Can the proposed system be a large single user solution in the prototype phase?
A.36 No. The purpose of this solicitation is to fund technology demonstration and deployment research projects that involve installing and operating pre-commercial energy storage technologies. All technologies proposed for consideration shall have demonstrated a system in the field that is at least at technical readiness level (TRL) of six with the capability to reach a TRL level seven when entering the demonstration phase of this grant. The proposal will define what TRL the product will meet upon completion of the grant with a goal of advancing to a TRL of eight. See Section II.B.2.
Q.37 Can funds be used solely for desktop studies or design buildup?
A.37 No. The purpose of this solicitation is to fund technology demonstration and deployment research projects that involve installing and operating pre-commercial energy storage technologies.
Q.38 Section B.7.b of the Application manual states: Any proposal that cannot clearly define an expected environmental review completion date by the agency having jurisdiction over the project, which would occur in time for the Energy Commission to complete its own review by a funding liquidation date of June 2020 may not be approved for funding. Does this mean that by defining a clear path to define an environmental review is sufficient to approve the funding?
A.38 No. For a proposal to be successfully awarded in the June 2020 Energy Commission Business Meeting, the CEC must have completed its own, independent environmental review.  For example, if an Environmental Impact Report is required for the proposed project, and no other agency has taken lead and completed an EIR, prior experience would indicate that the CEC would be unable to complete environmental review in time to meet its encumbrance deadline. Please refer to section I.D., “Additional Requirements.”
Q.39 For a waste-to-energy facility located in an area subject to unplanned grid outages and planned public safety power shutoffs, there are behind-the-meter non-electric long-duration (10+ hours) storage solutions that can provide increased reliability, resiliency and other services during times of power interruptions. Unlike the current residential storage solicitation which requires electricity-in and electricity-out, is a non-electric storage solution eligible here, assuming the stored energy can be converted to equivalent electric > 400 kw minimum using the facility’s heat-rate or other relevant metric?
In this example, the behind-the-meter stored energy will be converted to electricity for a minimum of 10 hours of energy storage capability at a minimum rating of 400 kilowatts to address a range of use cases which are the focus of this solicitation.
A.39	The proposer must explain why their system is considered an energy storage system to be considered for this solicitation.
Q.40	Can the Commission please boil down the extensive discussion of CEQA and other environmental review/permitting issues into a specific list of documents that the applicant is required to submit?
BACKGROUND:  The Application Manual for GFO-19-306 contains a very large number of references to CEQA and other permitting documentation in at least eight sections.  To some extent these are summarized by the following statement under the heading SCORING CRITERIA (page 41 of 48):
7.	“Technical Approach:” “Provides information documenting progress towards achieving compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) by addressing the areas in Section I.D, and Section III.D.4, and Section III.D.8.” In that regard:
a.	Section I.D explains that “Time is of the essence.  Funds available under this solicitation have encumbrance deadlines as early as June 30, 2020.  This means that the Energy Commission must approve proposed awards at a business meeting (usually held monthly) prior to June 2020 in order to avoid expiration of the funds.”
b.	Section III.D.4.b, Project Readiness states, among other things: “Include information about the permitting required for the project and whether or not the permitting has been completed. If complete, provide appropriate documentation. If local jurisdiction CEQA review and project approval is not complete, applications must include information documenting progress towards and a schedule for achieving compliance under CEQA within the timeframes specified in this solicitation (see Section I.D). All supporting documentation must be included in Attachment 8.”
c.	Section III.D.8 discusses the CEQA Compliance Form and states: “The Energy Commission requires the information on this form to facilitate its evaluation of proposed activities under CEQA (California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et. seq.), a law that requires state and local agencies in California to assess the potential environmental impacts of their proposed actions. The form will also help applicants to determine CEQA compliance obligations by identifying which proposed activities may be exempt from CEQA and which activities may require additional environmental review. If proposed activities are exempt from CEQA (such as paper studies), the worksheet will help to identify and document this.  This form must be completed regardless of whether the proposed activities are considered a “project” under CEQA.”
A.40	CEQA documents may vary depending on the specifics of any one project. If applicants are uncertain as to how to proceed to increase their ability to provide information that will allow the CEC to timely conduct its own CEQA review, they should consult with their counsel or other advisor who is familiar with CEQA. Also, please refer to the examples given in section I.D.2; they may be helpful.
Q.41 Please confirm that 91% match funding would qualify for all 5 extra credit points available in that category.
A.41 There are two ways to receive additional points for match funding. If 91% of the match funds are cash (rather than in-kind cost share), then this would qualify for 5 extra points. If the total match (combined cash and in-kind) is 91% above the minimum match requirement, then this would qualify for 5 extra points. See the Scoring Criteria table for Criterion 10 in the solicitation manual. See Q.18.
Q.42 Is there a minimum number of individuals required to make up the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)?
A.42 No, there is no minimum number of individuals required for the Technical Advisory Committee. However, the Energy Commission CAM must approve the TAC members proposed by the awardee.
Q.43 Please confirm that 5% of CEC funding must be dedicated to Technology / Knowledge Transfer Plan.
A.43 There is no requirement that 5% of CEC funding be dedicated to Technology / Knowledge Transfer Plan activities. However, enough funding must be proposed to ensure all required tasks are accomplished.
Q.44 Regarding battery price projections, how much should we add for total installation compared to the pack?
A.44 The Energy Commission will not provide that information. It is up to the proposer to select what information they feel is accurate and define that information in their proposal.
Q.45 If the whole system contains lithium-ion batteries, like a power battery, is that acceptable?
A.45 For Groups 1, 2, and 3, the technology that is being demonstrated in the proposed systems must be non-lithium ion. Please see Sections II.B.2.a.2, II.B.2.b.3, and II.B.2.c.3 in the solicitation manual. Group 4 is the only group where the technology proposed can be lithium or non-lithium. Please see Section II.B.2.d.1. If lithium ion is used for backup in a support system like for the control system, data collection system or other support devices, that is acceptable.
Q.46 What discharge times are used for the $/kWh calculations shown for the lithium-ion batteries on the previous slide? [In reference to the slide titled “Battery Price Projections” in the Pre-application workshop.]
A.46 Because this is publically available information, the assumption is that the discharge time is four hours or less. Contact the entity that published the information if you desire more detailed information.
Q.47 Are in front of the meter projects allowed?
A.47 No. Please see “2. Project Focus” on page 17 in Section II.B.2.
Q.48 Does efficiency matter? Or as long as the $/kWh is competitive, it is good? Does levelized cost of storage (LCOS) matter?
A.48 Efficiency matters but it’s not a requirement except for Group 4 with Title 24. Title 24 specifies a particular efficiency requirement and if you don’t meet it you can still qualify, but there will be a penalty for it for that application. That’s one of the things we’re trying to determine in this research: What’s the right number for efficiency? In general, if your efficiency is at 50-80% then you’re within the market range. If you’re at 20-30% then you have a long way to go. We are interested in the levelized cost of energy when you look at a particular application and how it compares to generation and other uses of energy storage.
Q.49 Do projects have to be deployed at a customer site behind the meter? For example, can a utility be considered the customer?
A.49 The sites have to be in one of the three IOU territories, at a behind-the-meter site. If the utility is the end-customer and it’s a behind-the-meter project for the utility, then that would qualify. However, if the project will be on the grid side of the transmission or distribution system, then that is not allowed for this solicitation. Please see “2. Project Focus” on page 17 in Section II.B.2.
Q.50 Does electric and heat factor into efficiency?
A.50 Yes; the specific metrics used for efficiency and how they are assessed will vary based on the type of technology. Therefore, we leave it up to the applicant to describe, such as in the project narrative, the value and the price of the system and how different efficiency elements have a commercial value.
Q.51 When you have a broader category of the non-lithium ion technologies is there a sub-set of eligible technologies that you’ve identified, or is it very open to interpretation and open to proposal by the applicant?
A.51 You have to have an existing system operating that demonstrates your technology for this solicitation. We’re not defining which non-lithium technologies are acceptable and not acceptable. In general we’re talking about advanced batteries, thermal storage, flow batteries, fly wheels, and compressed air systems, to name a few. To meet the TRL level 6-8 for this solicitation, you cannot be doing your first demonstration. If you have an operating system, then it could meet the requirements. Please see Sections II.B.2.a.10, II.B.2.b.8, II.B.2.c.8, and II.B.2.d.5.
Q.52 Will the CEC reject applications if the technology is not currently at TRL 6?
A.52 There is some flexibility on the interpretation of TRL 6. We are looking for projects that are operational and ready for market expansion. We are trying to get closer to the commercial market, so it is important for the applicant to demonstrate that they have a credible system that is ready for this level of demonstration.
Q.53 Can the match funding be from the recipient of the storage system?
A.53 Yes.
Q.54 If the match funding is from a company that fails to fulfill their commitment, will we be given an opportunity to replace that funding? How long would we have?
A.54 The proposal must include commitment letters for any match funding that is being provided. If the proposal is selected for an award, the match commitment must be verified before the grant can be taken to the Energy Commission Business Meeting for approval. During the execution of the grant, the awardee is responsible to meet the match requirement that was proposed and approved and which is specified in the grant agreement. If one of the match providers drops out, the recipient is required to replace that match source in a reasonable time. Failure to meet match commitment is grounds to have the grant terminated, and for the CEC to pursue other remedies.
Q.55 For match funding points, you can get up to 10 extra points, is that correct?
A.55 Yes; if the match is at least 80% in cash (not in-kind), and it exceeds the minimum match requirement by 80% or more, then this would qualify for 10 extra points.
Q.56 Would power to gas be eligible if the gas is stored on site and reused behind the meter?
Q.57 A.56	The proposer must explain why their system is considered an energy storage system to be considered for this solicitation.Can you clarify the power to gas explanation? For example, if we make hydrogen, store it on site, and re-generate the hydrogen with a mix of natural gas to produce power, does that qualify?
Q.58 A.57	See answer to Q.56.Can we deliver fuel to our site or does this have to be electricity in electricity out? If no, if we produce the fuel with electricity offsite then deliver to the site host does that count?
A.58 See answer to Q.56.
Q.59 For Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) money that can be used as potential match funds, if there are delays in the SGIP funding, are those delays being taken into consideration? And is that timing important?
A.59 The proposal must include commitment letters for any match funding that is being provided. If the proposal is selected for an award, the match commitment must be verified before the grant can be taken to the Energy Commission Business Meeting for approval. During the execution of the grant, the awardee is responsible to meet the match requirement that was proposed and approved. If one of the match providers drops out, the recipient is required to replace that match source in a reasonable time with another valid source of match funding. Failure to meet match commitment is grounds to have the grant terminated, and for the CEC to pursue other remedies. Match funds must be available for use during the term of the grant agreement.
Q.60 If the existing system is presently produced outside California, may we assume that the grant can be used to set up production in California?
A.60 EPIC funds can be used for the manufacturing of the energy storage system in California. EPIC funds from this solicitation cannot be used to develop a manufacturing capability in California and to pay for manufacturing equipment or manufacturing related installation upgrades. This is for funding an EPIC Technology Demonstration and Deployment project, not for building a manufacturing capability.
Q.61 If the original equipment manufacturer (OEM) of the storage system is outside of California, but the distributor is in California, are the funds spent in California?
A.61 If the Recipient pays the OEM – and not the distributor – for an equipment purchase, and the OEM is not a business located in California, then the equipment purchase does not count as funds spent in California. If a company is registered with the California Secretary of State and pays California taxes, it is interpreted to be “a business located in California.” Please see scoring criterion 7 “CEC Funds Spent in California” for more information.
Q.62 Could you distinguish between "a business located in California" and a "California Based Entity" -  as it pertains to the Funds Spent in California? For example, when a large proportion of the project costs are procured from out-of-state manufacturers but those materials are imported through a registered California office, does that comply?
A.62 If a company is registered with the California Secretary of State and pays California taxes, it is interpreted to be “a business located in California.” The term “California Based Entity” is not used in this solicitation. Typically, grant recipients will document their funds spent in California on the basis of transactions with businesses located in California and expenses that have paid California taxes. For example, a consultancy firm with an office based in California, with California based employees, will be registered with the California Secretary of State and will pay California taxes.
To determine “funds spent in California” for when the OEM is not in California and an importer is, look to who is paid. If the recipient has a contract with and pays the out-of-state OEM, then it is not funds spent in California. Please see scoring criterion 7 “CEC Funds Spent in California” for more information.
Q.63 Please confirm that a single technology could apply to all four groups and be considered independently? Will each application be reviewed independently?
A.63 Yes to both questions. Each application for the four groups must be a separate and independent proposal. No proposal can reference another proposal for any information or support.
Q.64 Regarding scoring criterion 9 for disadvantaged and/or low-income communities: Does scoring criterion 9 only apply to Group 3 projects or does it apply to all of the Groups 1-4?
A.64 Scoring criterion 9 applies only to Group 3 projects. Scoring criterion 13 applies only to Groups 1, 2 and 4 as bonus points for projects located in disadvantaged and/or low-income communities. See GFO-19-306 Addendum 1, January 30, 2020, for the details.
Q.65 For Group 4: Are we expected to create different time of use rates for customers?
A.65 The proposal is expected to address existing IOU rates that would apply to the proposed demonstration. Additionally, the proposal is expected to include new proposed rates and tariffs that can be demonstrated to provide added value to the ratepayer.
Q.66 Would we need to coordinate with the utility to provide these special tariffs?
A.66 It is not necessary to coordinate with the utility during the proposal phase. If selected for an award, you will be expected to coordinate with the utility during the execution of the grant.
Q.67 So we would be simulating these innovative rates?
A.67 How you demonstrate these proposed new rates and tariffs is up to the proposer. Simulation is an acceptable process.
Q.68 Would being inside the home and outside in the garage, like conditioned space vs. unconditioned space, count as inside and outside space in the resident facility? What are you looking for?
A.68 The main concern is that the technology being used meets the local permitting and safety requirements. Typically for residential applications, the systems are not installed in conditioned space. They’re either in the garage or outside.
Q.69 For the minimum of 15 sites, there’s no breakdown of how many are required to be inside or outside?
A.69 Correct. That is up to the proposer.
Q.70 If it’s a new community development within an IOU territory, would that be adequate to get a letter from the IOU?
A.70 A letter from the IOU is an example of one way to validate that your project is in IOU territory. The applicant needs to submit verification that the project meets the requirements of the GFO.
Q.71 When we specify the location’s accuracy, can we just state it will be within this community in the IOU and not specify the exact home site location?
A.71 Applicants must show that the demonstration sites are within an IOU territory and meet the requirements of the GFO.
Q.72 For Group 1: When comparing for value, are you going to be looking at overall costs, dollar per kWh, dollar per kW in, or dollar per kW out?
A.72 It is up to the proposer to demonstrate the value of their proposed project. What metrics they choose are up to them as long as the proposal meets the requirements of the GFO.
Q.73 Should we aim for just above 400 kW?
A.73 The proposed system for Group 1 must meet the requirement of the GFO which includes a system level power rating no lower than 400KWs and a duration of at least 10 hours. Please see Section II.B.2.a.
Q.74 Will the list of attendees both in the room and online be available online? If so, when is the expected timeline? Thanks.
A.74 The list of attendees has been posted on the GFO website at:
https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-01/gfo-19-306-demonstrating-long-duration-and-title-24-compatible-energy-storage.
Q.75 Does EPIC have a list of tribes and disadvantaged communities to contact regarding project sites?
A.75 The California Energy Commission does not provide a list of potential project sites. You are encouraged to visit the Empower Innovation website at https://www.empowerinnovation.net/ to participate with other potential project partners in professional collaborations.
Q.76 [Is] Att-12 (Waiver of Sovereign Immunity) … applicable on our submission for GFO-19-306[?] On our Group 2 submission, we … are the grant applicant, a private company, providing the cash match and the technology, in addition to doing the work. The tribe … is merely providing the project site on their tribal lands and is interested in the results of the project for possible future use.

A.76	Each prime applicant must agree to enter into an agreement with the CEC to conduct the proposed project according to the terms and conditions that correspond to its organization, including for prime applicants who are Native American Tribes or tribal corporations, the EPIC Grant Agreement Special Terms and Conditions for Native American Tribes and Tribal Corporations as well as the standard terms and conditions.
Q.77 Given the critical nature of support and commitment letters, in the event that a single party is going to submit a support and a commitment letter, for example, can those both be on one letter or should they be submitting two separate letters, one for commitment and one for support?

A.77 Two separate letters should be submitted for the two different roles.
Q.78 Regarding Scoring Criterion 12 for the CEQA bonus points: Do I understand correctly that the bonus points come down to a timing issue? So the CEQA documentation is required, but there are bonus points associated with completing this requirement sooner – is that correct?
A.78 Yes, that is correct.
Q.79 I have a question on applicant eligibility and group composition. Can a prime applicant also participate as a subcontractor in another application?
A.79 Yes.
Q.80 If an applicant is planning to apply for more than one group and they think they can get it within the page number requirements for all of the different components, is it better to put both group projects into one application or submit two completely separate packages of information?
A.80 Each proposed application must be completely separate and independent and clearly state for which group they are applying. Combining proposals for different groups is not allowed.
Q.81 Is the energy storage project to be implemented by end of year or is there a timeline for commissioning?
A.81 The proposed system must meet the timeline defined in the GFO and all grant activities must be completed by December 31, 2023.
Q.82 If the area is on High Pollution, Low Population CalEnviro 3.0, (parts of Port of L.A. for example), is it considered disadvantaged community, and right next to it is 90% community?
A.82 Disadvantaged communities are defined as areas representing census tracts scoring in the top 25 % in CalEnviroScreen 3.0. (https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30)
Q.83 Can the match funds be spent for out of California/U.S., while reserving the EPIC funds for domestic spending?
A.83 Match funding does not have to be spent in California as long as the funds spent can be attributed to the proposed project activities in the approved grant and otherwise meet the requirements for match funds laid out in the application manual and Terms and Conditions.
Q.84 Given the sovereign status of the tribal nations in Group 2, how is the CEQA applicable?
A.84 If the proposed project will be conducted on tribal land, the tribe having jurisdiction over the project may conduct environmental review as appropriate, for example under the tribe’s own ordinances. The CEC will then determine what, if any, environmental review the CEC must conduct. Please refer to solicitation application manual sections I.D. Example 5; II.B.2.a.7.a; II.B.2.b.10.a; II.B.2.c.10.a; Environmental Review Criteria Preference Point #12 for Groups 1, 2, and 4; and Environmental Review Criteria Preference Point #12 for Group 3.
Q.85 With regard to Group 4: Define the boundaries that qualify Northern CA, Coastal, and Central Valley climate zones. The climate zone map linked in the Application Manual does not distinguish the boundaries of these regions.
A.85 Northern California encompasses Zones 2, 11, and the upper half of 16 (extending the bottom border of Zone 11 eastward to the California-Nevada border). Coastal encompasses Zones 1, 3, 5, 6 and 7. Central Valley encompasses Zones 12 and 13. This delineation is based on the climate zone map linked in the application manual: https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/maps/renewable/building_climate_zones.html.
Q.86 Define the new construction requirements of this grant. The words “new construction” are not listed in the Application Manual, only in the GFO synopsis. To elaborate, if a home needs to have an M&V component the home must be occupied. With regard to this statement, can the “new construction” aspect be a home constructed and occupied within the past two years?
A.86 Yes, the home can be constructed and occupied within the past two years. Existing homes can be used for data analysis; however, these homes may not be eligible for Title 24 compliance credit.
Q.87 Please elaborate on the remote control aspects of Group 4 - e.g., California Rule 21 and Open ADR?
A.87 All equipment installed to comply with Title 24 must meet CPUC Rule 21 requirements; that includes PV inverters as well as batteries. Joint Appendix 12 lists the requirements for remote communication capabilities; for example, the batteries installed must be capable of remote communication, receiving instructions remotely, changing charge/discharge periods, switching between different control strategies, and capable of remotely receiving a signal that will revert the battery during backup mode back to program mode.
Q.88 JA-12 does not really get that specific. It is elsewhere in T-24. Just wanting to make sure I understand.
A.88 The requirements are in JA-12. We didn’t want to be too specific, or to limit it to specific protocols or procedures if the capabilities are important. What’s important is the capability of communication and control strategies (Basic/Time of Use/Demand Response). We did not specify what capability it should be. It could be hard-wired, internet, WiFi, Zigbee; it could be any of these and these are all acceptable. What’s required is that those functions that are in JA-12 be able to be programmed into the batteries, or changed without going to the site and that it can be done remotely. We left that open on purpose because we didn’t want to limit it to certain technologies. As this is under Research & Development, we are trying to evaluate different ways that we can improve or make these systems valuable and cost-effective to the customer and to the grid. If the result from this process is a recommendation, then a preferred communication protocol may be something that we want to include in a future cycle of the standards.
Q.89 What does confidential material refer to when talking about reasons for disqualification?
A.89 Any proposal that contains confidential information or identifies any portion of the application as confidential may be disqualified.
Q.90 Are applicants allowed to propose a 48-month project term? The Manual states that the project must complete within 36-48 months (Manual Section III.D.6 at p. 31, ), but Attachment 1 says that the proposed term must fall within the dates specified in the “Key Activities Schedule” in Part 1 of the application, which specifies a ~36-month term.
A.90 As defined in the GFO, the proposed project must be defined such that all grant activities are completed by December 31, 2023.
Q.91 Can a same consortium apply for different group fundings?
A.91 Yes, a principal grant applicant may submit one proposal for each of the four groups as long as each proposal submitted meets all the specific requirements defined for the group. There is no limit on the number of proposals that an entity can participate in as a subcontractor or match funding partner. See Section II.B.2.
Q.92 Does past performance refer to EPIC funding specifically or any CEC grant funding?
A.92 Past performance refers to any prior CEC grant funding that was received.
Q.93 Can the matching funds commitment be from an entity outside of the U.S.A.?
A.93 Yes, as long as it can be demonstrated that the funding directly supports the proposed project and the match funding requirements are otherwise met.
Q.94 The value of long duration will demonstrate better in a high renewable penetration in the future? Could the benefits be simulated?
A.94 It is up to the proposer to define how the value of a proposed system will be measured and demonstrated. Simulation can be an acceptable method of demonstrating value for a research project as long as the simulation is relevant and credible.
Q.95 What is the minimum cycles required for the backup solution?
A.95 Not defined.  Up to the proposer.
Q.96 Do you need to have a system running in California to apply?
A.96 No, as long as the proposer can demonstrate the maturity level of the proposed technology solution.
Q.97 50 kW per hour for 10 hours, or 50kW total over 10 hours?
A.97 A proposed system must provide a minimum power level of 50KWs for a duration of at least 10 hours to meet the requirements in Groups 2 and 3.
Q.98 Will energy storage systems connected to the grid be considered?
A.98 The proposed system must be connected on the customer side of the utility meter. How that connection occurs is up to the proposer.
Q.99 Is there a repository of past successful/unsuccessful applications that we can access for reference, e.g. other technology demonstration solicitations?
A.99 Applicants can review previous CEC grant awards by reviewing the list of Notice of Proposed Awards (NOPAs) on the Energy Commission website under Funding. Each NOPA has a contact listed for information and copies of previous awarded grants under that specific NOPA. Questions on how to use this section of the Energy Commission website should be referred to the Contracts, Grants and Loans Office.
Q.100 Can IP be considered as cash?
A.100 No. Match funds are typically tangible project items specific to the proposed project. Please see the GFO manual section and Terms and Conditions on match funding for more details.
Q.101 Will 10% of all funds through the CEC be withheld until the Final Report is published by the CEC?
A.101 There is a 10% retention withheld until completion of the project, including all deliverables and CEC acceptance of the final report.
Q.102 Is there a specific way of fund distribution between the Prime and sub-contractors?
A.102 The allocation of funds is left to the prime and sub-contractors. The CEC only directly pays the prime grant recipient. 
Q.103 To clarify the agreement end date applicants reflect in the Scope of Work -- are we required to define a scope that has an end date of December 31, 2023 based on the key activities schedule?
A.103 The end date can be earlier, but no later than December 31, 2023. This includes the completion of all project activities, including all deliverables and the final report.
Q.104 I don't understand the Exceeds Minimum match description or table. Extra points are received from the minimum match, up to 100%. Is that 100% of the grant amount? If you get $2M is the cap for getting extra points $2M? I.e. does $2M = 100%? The table provides 1 point for >10% above the minimum match. If the grant is for $2M does and the minimum match is $400k, what is 10% in this table? Is it $40K above $400k or $440 total match? If that is the case, then 100% would actually be... an additional $400k for a total match of $800k for a $2M grant. If 100% is actually $2M for a $2M grant (for a total project cost of $4M) then this table doesn't make sense. Any help in understanding the match using an example with actual grant and match numbers would be helpful. Thank you.
A.103	The scoring table on match funds (scoring criterion 10) in the solicitation manual will be amended to the following:

a. Cash match share is preferred; however, in-kind cost share is permitted and will be considered for solicitation match requirements. Points for this criterion will be evaluated based on the proposed cash match relative to the total match (cash + in-kind) contributions using the Cash Match Scoring Table:
Cash Match Scoring Table
	Percentage of Proposed Cash Match Funds
	Score

	80 to 100%
	5

	60 to <80%
	4

	40 to <60%
	3

	20 to <40%
	2

	10 to <20%
	1


b. Additional points will be awarded to applications that exceed the minimum match requirements based on the percentage amount above minimum using the Exceeds Minimum Match Scoring table:
Exceeds Minimum 
Match Scoring Table
	Percentage above Minimum Match (cash and in-kind)
	Score

	80%
	5

	60 to <80%
	4

	40 to <60%
	3

	20 to <40%
	2

	10 to <20%
	1
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